Life is a Journey Copyright © 2011 BiblicalTraining.org All Rights Reserved

Requests for information should be addressed to:

BiblicalTraining.org 523 NE Everett St Camas WA 98607

ISBN-13: 978-1544100678 ISBN-10: 1544100671

All Scripture quotations, unless otherwise indicated, are taken from the ESV® Bible (The Holy Bible, English Standard Version®), copyright © 2001 by Crossway, a publishing ministry of Good News Publishers. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked (NIV) are from the Holy Bible, New International Version®, NIV®. Copyright ©1973, 1978, 1984, 2011 by Biblica, Inc.™ Used by permission of Zondervan. All rights reserved worldwide. www.zondervan.com The "NIV" and "New International Version" are trademarks registered in the United States Patent and Trademark Office by Biblica, Inc.™

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means—electronic, mechanical, photocopy, recording, or any other—except for brief quotations in printed reviews, without the prior permission of BiblicalTraining.org.

Printed in the United States of America

https://www.biblicaltraining.org/life-journey/bill-mounce

Overview

Title: Life is a Journey

Speaker: Dr. Bill Mounce. President, BiblicalTraining.org.

When we became a follower of Jesus, we started on the spiritual journey of our life. We went through the gate of conversion and started up the path of discipleship. As we travel the path, we will start to change, not because we have to but because we want to. We wouldn't always make the right decisions; we will stumble, but Jesus and your fellow travelers are there to help you get back on your feet. The further you travel, the more you will learn about God, how to listen to him and how to talk with him. You will learn more deeply who God is, who Jesus is and what he did, and who the Holy Spirit is and what he does for us. And you will learn about walking with other believers (the "church") and inviting others to join you ("evangelism"). Because life is a journey, God does not expect you to get everything right the first time; we are all on a learning curve and God is patient with us. However, we were never intended to walk alone. We were saved into a new family, with new brothers and sisters, and a new Father. In this study you are encouraged to find an older traveler and invite them to walk with you.

GOALS

- 1. To gain a broad understanding of the theological themes of the Bible
- 2. To understand how the different teachings fit together
- 3. To understand why theology is important
- 4. To learn how to apply theology to life in gracious and God-honoring ways

REQUIREMENTS

- 1. 12 sessions
- 2. 30 minutes a day, four days a week
- 3. Three hours, a day a week (lesson and discussion)

PREREQUISITES

None

FORMAT

Video and audio

BiblicalTraining.org

BiblicalTraining.org is not-for-profit ministry that gives all people access to a world-class Christian education at no cost. Our classes range from new believers to biblical literacy ("Foundations"), deeper Bible study ("Academy"), and seminary-level training ("Institute").

We are a 501(c)3 not-for-profit and rely solely on the donations of our users. All donations are tax deductible according to the current US tax codes.

DISTINCTIVES

World class. All Bible classes are taught by world-class professors from major seminaries.

Holistic. We want to see students move through content to deep reflection and application.

Configurable. Ministries can use BT lectures as well as their own to design their educational program.

Accessible. BiblicalTraining is a web-based ministry whose content is provided at no cost.

Community-based. We encourage people to learn together, in mentor/apprentice relationships.

Broadly evangelical. Our materials are broadly evangelical, governed by our Statement of Faith, and are not tied to any one church, denomination or tradition.

Partners. We provide the content and delivery mechanisms, and our partner organizations provide the community and mentoring.

Table of Contents

YOUR SPEAKER
WELCOME
STUDENT'S GUIDE
MENTOR'S GUIDE
1. LET'S REVIEW YOUR CONVERSION
It's always a good idea to look back over your conversion experience. What do you think happened when you became a follower of Jesus Christ? Are you unclear about anything? Could you possibly have misunderstood anything? Did anything happen of which you might not be aware?
2. THINGS ARE ABOUT TO CHANGE
"Conversion" means you converted from one thing to another. In your case, you changed from not being a disciple of Jesus to being one. It also means that God is now at work in your life, starting to make you be more like Jesus. Does this surprise you? What actually happened when you became a Christian? What does this new life as a follower of Jesus look like? Does my life change automatically?
3. WHEN YOU STUMBLE
Even though God's power is at work within you, helping you to become more like Jesus, you will stumble. This is not to remove the joy of your new faith; it is to prepare you for the joy of spiritual growth that lies ahead. God knows this and is not surprised, and it does not affect his commitment toward you. What is "sin"? Is temptation sin? How will you tell God that you sinned and are sorry? Does he forgive? Can you be cleansed?

Table of Contents

4. LISTENING TO GOD
A crucial element of any relationship is communication, both listening and speaking. God has spoken to us two basic ways, through creation and through his Word, the Bible. What do the terms "inspiration," "authority," and "canonicity" mean? Can we trust the Bible? How do I listen to God as I read his word? Am I supposed to do anything beyond reading it?
5. SPEAKING WITH GOD
Healthy communication requires not only listening but also talking. Prayer is simply talking with God, about anything and everything. He is our new Father, and he wants to hear from you. How do you pray? What do you pray about? What if I have trouble listening to him speaking?
6. LEARNING MORE ABOUT GOD
When you became a Christian, you understood certain things about God. But did you know that he knows everything? That he is present everywhere? That he is all-powerful? How then should we respond to a fuller knowledge of God? What is worship? How should we respond to what we know of God?
7. LEARNING MORE ABOUT WHO JESUS IS
Jesus is the best known person in history. He has had more affect on world history than any other leader or philosophy or political movement. Many people know the name, but who is he? What did he say about himself? What did his followers say about him? And what is the significance and relevance of these questions and our answers?
8. LEARNING MORE ABOUT WHAT JESUS DID
Jesus did many things while on earth, but the most significant of all was dying on the cross. But what exactly happened? What was accomplished? What does the Bible mean when it talks about Jesus being the "Lamb of God"? Is there anything that can help me understand the significance of his death. Do I need to be reminded about it on a regular basis?

9. LEARNING MORE ABOUT THE HOLY SPIRIT
Christians are monotheists; we believe in one God. But we are also Trinitarians; we believe in three "persons" of the Trinity – God the Father, God the Son, and God the Holy Spirit. Who is this third member of the Trinity? What actually does he do? What is his on-going role in my life? What does it mean to be led and empowered by the Holy Spirit? Do I have to do anything, or does he do all the work? Where would we be if it were not for the work of the Holy Spirit?
10. WALKING WITH GOD
When you became a Christian, you started to walk with God. It is a day-by-day process in which sin has less hold on your life and you more and more look like Jesus. But some days are more difficult than others, especially when difficult things happen. Why do these "bad things" happen? Can I keep back parts of myself from God if doing so helps me avoid pain? Are there any consequences to allowing sin in some parts of my life? What does it mean that Jesus is both "Savior" and "Lord"?
11. WALKING TOGETHER
While we become God's children one disciple at a time, as children we are members of a new family with a new father, new brothers and sisters, and a new home. How do I relate to these people? Do I need to spend time with them? Is this an easy or difficult task? How does the early church help us understand these issues? How does my love for God show itself to others?
12. INVITING OTHERS TO WALK WITH YOU
Disciples are to make more disciples. This is one of the most joyous experiences of your life as you share how God made you alive, and he will do the same for your friends, neighbors, and others. This isn't a frightening process; it is in fact natural for people who have been changed and are living changed lives. How will people respond to you? What is a "personal testimony"? How do I tell people they too can be a disciple of Jesus? What if they don't like me?
WHAT'S NEXT?

Table of Contents vii

Your Speaker

Dr. Bill Mounce lives as a writer in Washougal, Washington. He is the President of BiblicalTraining.org, a non-profit organization offering world-class educational resources for discipleship in the local church. He also runs BillMounce.com, a site committed to helping people learn biblical Greek..

Formerly Bill was a preaching pastor at a church in Washington state, and prior to that a professor of New Testament and director of the Greek Program at Gordon-Conwell Theological Seminary. He also taught at Azusa Pacific University for ten years.

Bill is the author of the bestselling Greek textbook, *Basics of Biblical Greek*, and many other resources. He was the New Testament chair of the English Standard Version translation of the Bible, and is currently serving on the NIV translation committee.

Robin and Bill have been married since 1983 and have three children.

EDUCATION

Ph.D. 1981, in New Testament. Aberdeen University, Aberdeen, Scotland.

M.A. 1977, in Biblical Studies. Fuller Theological Seminary, Pasadena, California.

B.A. 1975, in Biblical Studies, minor in Greek. Bethel College, St. Paul, Minnesota; Western Kentucky University, Bowling Green, Kentucky, 1971-74.

Welcome

Welcome. We are glad that you have decided to use this curriculum. Our deepest desire is to help new believers start their new lives well. The Bible talks about the Christian life as a "walk," a journey. It is a marathon, not a sprint, but taken one step at a time. With each step comes new joys and perhaps new challenges. We would be privileged to help you start your journey by taking the right steps in the right direction.

The Christian walk was never intended to be taken alone. One of the most important things you can do is find a mentor, a coach, a friend – whatever you want to call him or her. This person will get to know you, regularly pray for you, and meet with you periodically and work through this material with you.

There are twelve lessons, and each lesson is broken into six days. Ideally, you would do a little work each day (with one day off per week), and meet with your mentor on the fourth day to

viii Life is a Journey

go through the lesson. You can watch the lesson on video, listen to the audio, or your mentor can walk you through the material using the lesson outlines we provide.

GENERAL PRACTICAL SUGGESTIONS

- No prior knowledge of the Bible or church is necessary. We assume that you have just become a Christian and everything is new.
- Stay focused on Jesus, not on church or religious traditions to which you may have been exposed. In these twelve lessons we will cover a lot of ground, but the central truth is who God is and how you relate to him.
- Please buy a Bible. Your mentor can help you with this since there are many translations and many different editions of the Bible. We use the ESV (English Standard Version) throughout the lessons.
- Get involved in a church. Again, your mentor can help you with this. Just make sure that
 when the preacher is done speaking, you have heard the Bible explained. The Bible is
 God's words to you; make sure the preacher helps you understand them.
- Get involved with people. You are now part of a new family, and they will be an encouragement to you as well as you to them.
- Please commit to working through all twelve lessons on a regular schedule; twelve weeks would be best. It is important to cover all the basics.
- Be patient with yourself. All of the years of your life up to this point have taught you to think and respond a certain way. Many of those patterns are going to be changed.
- You are not alone. God does truly love you, and he will work to give you new desires and a new ability to work out those desires. The power of God that raised Jesus from the dead now lives in you. Together, you can do this.
- From the beginning you are encouraged to pray. Lesson 5 is all about this, but basically prayer is just speaking with God. It may feel strange at first, talking to someone that you can't see. But he has promised to be with you every step of the way; he is listening! As time goes by, this will become a natural part of your life.
- Never forget that the goal of all this is to have your life transformed. Training isn't just so you will know more, but the goal of all biblical training is that God will work through the truths of the Bible to transform your life. Everything we talk about in the next twelve weeks should have some practical impact on your life.

Welcome ix

Student's Guide

We are pleased that you have chosen to use materials from BiblicalTraining.org. We trust that you will find the materials to be of the highest quality and truly helpful in your own spiritual growth and that of your church. Please read through the following guidelines; they will help you make the best use of this guide.

WEEKLY SCHEDULE

- This curriculum is broken into twelve weeks. You can make a "week" extend for however long you wish.
- Each "week" is broken into six "days." Again, you can make each day be any period of time, but don't let them extend too long. You don't want this initial training to take so long that you never get through it.
- Apart from the fourth "day" when you work through the lesson, each day is designed
 to either prepare the new Christian for the lesson (Days 1 to 3) or to help them reflect
 over the lesson (Day 5-6). The person needs to start developing spiritual disciplines like
 journaling, memorizing, and praying on a regular basis. These need to become part of
 their every-day life. Be sure to meditate on the truths covered as well as just read and
 discuss.
- The fourth "day" is when you listen to the talk and take notes.
- The fifth "day" is when you memorize a verse. This is another important spiritual discipline that will frighten some people but still a discipline to be mastered.
- Everybody seems to be a little different as to when they can do this. Please start to
 develop the trait of spending regular time with God, whenever is best for you: morning,
 noon, or night. Be consistent. Have it be a quiet, peaceful time. Don't be in a hurry.

PRACTICAL SUGGESTIONS FOR WORKING WITH YOUR MENTOR

- Feel free to ask any question. The only "dumb" question is the unasked question. Especially if you are older, it may feel uncomfortable starting something this new later in life and you may have some hesitancy. There is too much at stake, however, not to ask.
- Be honest. Tell him or her exactly how you are feeling, what your expectations are and whether they are being met. Your mentor may be a little nervous, and he or she needs your help in order to help you.

Mentor's Guide

The time you spend with this new Christian may be the most significant hours of your life. You have been entrusted with a special person, and God wants to work through you to direct his new child in the right direction. Please take this trust seriously. You may be challenged in the process, and you may grow spiritually, as much as the new Christian, which is part of our thinking behind how this curriculum is laid out. Here are some practical suggestions for you.

- Don't be afraid. Throw yourself into the relationship. You won't have all the answers; that's okay. But if you have been walking with the Lord yourself, you will know most of the answers. For those other questions, admit you don't know and then ask someone who does.
- Pray regularly for this person. Even if you don't pray for anything else, pray for this person, and for yourself that the truths of God's kingdom will not only be taught but also caught, from you.
- Be sure you are prepared. Work through the material. Read. Pray.
- Be regular in meeting with them. Please make it a priority. A large part of who they understand God to be and the nature of their relationship with Jesus is going to be gleaned from you. It is a great responsibility and an immense privilege.
- You may want to take some time especially at first and discuss expectations. Share what you think will happen over the next twelve weeks. Assure them that the Christian walk is a process, a walk taken one step at a time, and each step brings with it joys and challenges.
- Don't get sidetracked. Some times these "rabbit trails" can be helpful, but not too many of them.
- This person will become very dear to you (cf. 1 Thess. 2:7-8). Cherish these times; they soon will be over.
- Spend time with the person outside of any mentoring context. Have fun together. Let them see you for who you are. Be real. Get to know their life's story.
- Get a commitment from the person to follow through all twelve chapters on whatever time schedule works for them. Make sure all expectations are clear.
- Open and close each meeting with prayer. They need to see your spiritual disciplines at work.
- Don't lose contact with the person when the twelve weeks are over. Keep praying and checking up on them.

Mentor's Guide xi

xii Life is a Journey

1

Let's Review Your Conversion

It's always a good idea to look back over your conversion experience. What do you think happened when you became a follower of Jesus Christ? Are you unclear about anything? Could you possibly have misunderstood anything? Did anything happen of which you might not be aware?

VERSES ON SALVATION

The following verses are some of the best known in the Bible on the topic of salvation. The information in parentheses (such as "John 3:16) give the location of the passage in the Bible (e.g., the book of John, chapter 3, verse 16).

"For God so loved the world, that he gave his only Son, that whoever believes in him should not perish but have eternal life" (John 3:16).

"For the wages of sin is death, but the free gift of God is eternal life in Christ Jesus our Lord" (Romans 6:23).

"All have sinned and fall short of the glory of God" (Romans 3:23).

"God shows his love for us in that while we were still sinners, Christ died for us" (Romans 5:8).

"For by grace you have been saved through faith. And this is not your own doing; it is the gift of God, not a result of works, so that no one may boast" (Ephesians 2:8-9).

"You were ransomed from the futile ways inherited from your forefathers, not with perishable things such as silver or gold, but with the precious blood of Christ, like that of a lamb without blemish or spot" (1 Peter 1:18-19).

DAY ONE

Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

One of the most famous passages in the Bible is in a book called "Psalms." In Psalm 23 God is compared to a shepherd who will care for his sheep; you and I are the sheep. What does this passage tell us about our God?
"The Lord is my shepherd; I shall not want. He makes me lie down in green pastures. He leads me beside still waters. He restores my soul. He leads me in paths of righteousness for his name's sake. Even though I walk through the valley of the shadow of death, I will fear no evil, for you are with me; your rod and your staff, they comfort me. You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies; you anoint my head with oil; my cup overflows. Surely goodness and mercy shall follow me all the days of my life, and I shall dwell in the house of the Lord forever."

1. Let's Review Your Conversion

Suggested prayer topics

DAY THREE

In this first talk we will go back over your conversion, see if you have any questions, and perhaps fill out your understanding of what God actually did for you. In preparation, think through how you would tell someone you became a Christian.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Introduction
"For God so loved the world"
Starting point:
This loving God:
Something terrible happened:
Consequence of sin:
Consequence of separation:
"All have sinned and fall short of the glory of God" (Romans 3:23).
"The wages of sin is death, but the free gift of God is eternal life in Christ Jesus our Lord" (Romans 6:23).

"That he gave his only Son"

"Surely he has borne our griefs and carried our sorrows; yet we esteemed him stricken, smitten by God, and afflicted. But he was wounded for our transgressions; he was crushed for our iniquities; upon him was the chastisement that brought us peace, and with his stripes we are healed. All we like sheep have gone astray; we have turned every one to his own way; and the Lord has laid on him the iniquity of us all" (Isaiah 53:5-6).

"God shows his love for us in that while we were still sinners, Christ died for us" (Romans 5:8).

How is it possible that one man's death paid the price for another person's sin?

1.	

2._____

a. Fully _____

b. Fully _____

Jesus "had to be made like his brothers in every respect, so that he might become a merciful and faithful high priest in the service of God, to make propitiation for the sins of the people" (Hebrews 2:17).

"That whoever believes in him:"
"Whoever"
"Him" vs. religion
"Believe into"
Psalm 23
Faith and works:
"For by grace you have been saved through faith. And this is not your own doing; it is the gift of God, not a result of works, so that no one may boast"
(Ephesians 2:8-9).
"Should not perish but have eternal life"
What are some of the benefits of eternal life here and now?

Before you made the decision, Jesus called you to count the cost

Salvation is f	free but will	cost you	everything

"Do you not know that your body is a temple of the Holy Spirit within you, whom you have from God? You are not your own, you were bought with a price. So glorify God in your body" (1 Corinthians 6:19-20).

"You were ransomed from the futile ways inherited from your forefathers, not with perishable things such as silver or gold, but with the precious blood of Christ, like that of a lamb without blemish or spot" (1 Peter 1:18-19).

What happened when you made the decision to follow Jesus?

Welcome to the family of God

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. Have you always believed that God existed? If so, why? If not, why did you change your mind?
- 2. Can you put into words how you feel knowing that God loved the world and created the world with purpose? How is that different from your friends who do not believe in God?
- 3. Explain in your own words what it means for sin to separate a person from God and for the punishment of sin being eternal separation from God.
- 4. It is essential for you to be able to explain what happened on the cross. You need to have a clear understanding for yourself, and you will want to be able to explain it to others. Give it a try.
- 5. How will you explain to someone else that Jesus' death paid the penalty of your sins? How is that possible?
- 6. Did you have any trouble believing that God could forgive even you, with everything you have done wrong? What convinced you otherwise?
- 7. What did you think of Christianity before you became a Christian? Was it a religion or a relationship? How would you explain it now?
- 8. How would you put John 3:16 into your own words? Make sure that you clarify the significance of "believe into."
- 9. What does it mean to be saved by God's grace and your faith? What do you think would happen if you had to earn your salvation?
- 10. What are you looking forward to in heaven? What parts of heaven are you looking forward to enjoying while still on earth?
- 11. What might your new faith in Jesus cost you?

DAY FIVE Write out and memorize John 3:16. Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX Write out John 3:16 using your own words. Feel free to take longer to say it so as to bring out the meaning of the verse.

Suggested prayer topics

2

Things Are About To Change

"Conversion" means you converted from one thing to another. In your case, you changed from not being a disciple of Jesus to being one. It also means that God is now at work in your life, starting to make you be more like Jesus. Does this surprise you? What actually happened when you became a Christian? What does this new life as a follower of Jesus look like? Does my life change automatically?

BIBLE VERSES

Paul makes the Philippian church a wonderful promise, that God will not only give them the desire to do the right thing, but also the ability.

"Dearest friends, you were always so careful to follow my instructions when I was with you. And now that I am away you must be even more careful to put into action God's saving work in your lives, obeying God with deep reverence and fear. For God is working in you, giving you the desire to obey him and the power to do what pleases him" (Philippians 2:12-13, New Living Translation).

Paul also tells the church in Galatia that their lives are going to change. These changes are called "fruit," and the fruit will be produced by the working of God's Spirit within them.

"The fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, self-control" (Galatians 5:22-23).

DAY ONE

Paul tells the church in Thessalonica about their reputation:
"For they themselves report how you turned to God from idols to serve the living and true God, and to wait for his Son from heaven, whom he raised from the dead, Jesus who delivers us from the wrath to come" (1 Thessalonians 1:9-10).
They "turned from idols" and turned to "the living and true God." While it is still early in your Christian walk, there probably are things that you have turned away from. Can you list any?
You have also turned to God. What are some ways in which you have started to do this?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

On page 23 you read Galatians 5:22-23 and Paul's discussion of the "Fruits of the Spirit." As you look over this list of what your life is going to look like, which do you long for the most?
Which ones will be a little easier?
Which ones will be a little more difficult for you?
Are there any that you don't understand or don't see as beneficial?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY THREE

In tomorrow's talk we will see that changed people live changed lives. God has changed you
from the inside out, and that change is going to start showing itself in your attitudes, activities,
even what you say and what you talk about. This is an exciting time.

But please do not get discouraged. It is not like God is sitting there with a scowl on his face demanding that you change your life right away. Remember Philippians 2:12-13 that we looked at the other day. He gives you the desires and the ability.

What are you looking forward to? What do you want this new changed life to look like? Dream a little.		
Suggested prayer topics		

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Emphasis
"We've been changed, and changed people live in a changed way."
Should not come as a surprise. What happened in your conversion?
1. Separated
2. Called to
a. Changed my
b. Commitment to change
"For they themselves report concerning us the kind of reception we had among you, and how you turned to God from idols to serve the living and true God" (1 Thessalonians 1:9).
3. Dead to
"My new life as a believer is going to be because I am different."

Fill out the picture of your conversion

Before conversion, God
"No one can come to me unless the Father who sent me draws him" (John 6:44).
At conversion, God
"For by grace you have been saved through faith. And this is not your own doing; it is the gift of God, not a result of works, so that no one may boast" (Ephesians 2:8-9).
When you made your decision and responded in faith
Rescued
Forgiven
Justified
Freed from condemnation
Redeemed

Sanctified _	
Born again	(made into a new creation; regenerated)
Gave us his	
Romans 6 and the imag	ery of baptism
"By no means! How	can we who died to sin still live in it?" (Romans 6:2).
Description of the	act of baptism
In baptism y	ou publicly proclaim that
were bapt	you not know that all of us who have been baptized into Christ Jesus baptized into his death? We were buried therefore with him by ism into death, in order that, just as Christ was raised from the dead be glory of the Father, we too might walk in newness of life" (Romans 4).
What does this new life	look like?
1. Life of	
"If anyone w follow me" (yould come after me, let him deny himself and take up his cross and Mark 8:34).

2. Fruits of the Spirit

Who is the "Holy Spirit"?
"Monotheists"
"Hear, O Israel: The LORD our God, the LORD is one. Love the LORD your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your strength" (Deuteronomy 6:4-5).
"Trinity"
"Bear fruit"
"The fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, self-control" (Galatians 5:22-23).
This is a process that may already have started.

Is the change automatic? What is my role, if any?

1. Not a	utomatic
2. The d	esire, and the ability to meet that desire, are both from God
li 9	You must be even more careful to put into action God's saving work in your ves, obeying God with deep reverence and fear. For God is working in you, siving you the desire to obey him and the power to do what pleases him" Philippians 2:12-13; New Living Translation).
k W	I appeal to you therefore, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your podies as a living sacrifice, holy and acceptable to God, which is your spiritual vorship. Do not be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewal of your mind" (Romans 12:1-2).
и	Trust in the LORD with all your heart, and do not lean on your own inderstanding. In all your ways acknowledge him, and he will make straight our paths" (Proverbs 3:5-6).
We are the sal	t of the earth, the light of the world
"You are the sal	t of the earth You are the light of the world" (Matthew 5:13,14).
"We wer	re at the gate, of course our lives will be'

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. Think through your conversion. What parts of it indicate that life as a Christian would be different?
- 2. Before you became a Christian, you may not have thought of yourself as spiritually dead. But now as you look back, does this seem a fair estimation? Is there some other metaphor you would like to use to describe your pre-conversion life?
- 3. Have you noticed any changes since your conversion? Are there any actions or attitudes that are starting to change?
- 4. Was the word "repent" used with you? Do you know what it means? Do you understand how it includes changing your thinking about Jesus as well as changing your actions, turning your back on sin and living a new life? Ask your friend if you are not sure what this all means.
- 5. Do not become discouraged if change is not happening quickly. You've lived most of your life outside of God; it is a process to change and start becoming more like Jesus. Do you understand this? Ask your friend how their lives changed when they became a Christian.
- 6. Do you have any questions about baptism? Do you understand that it doesn't save you but rather it is a public proclamation of your new faith in Jesus, that he has given you new life? Again, talk with your friend. The Bible says that we should be baptized, and the biblical model is to be baptized soon after conversion. Would you like to be baptized?
- 7. Are you a little frightened by the idea that you are now to follow a life of discipleship with Christ? What do you think that is going to look like in the near future?
- 8. The teaching of "monotheism" and the "Trinity" can be somewhat daunting. You don't have to understand them in their entirety, but do you have a basic idea of what they mean? Do you understand what the Holy Spirit is doing in your life right now?
- 9. "Bearing fruit" is a helpful metaphor. What does "fruit" signify? What might be some examples of fruit that are already appearing in your life? What fruit might God want to see in the near future? Remember: don't be overwhelmed by this. God is gentle and works with us slowly and persistently.
- 10. God is going to place desires in your heart and then, through the Holy Spirit, give you the ability to achieve those desires. But you must co-operate. You must take the next step. Does this make sense? Do you have any questions?
- 11. How do you feel about our theme statement: "We've been changed, and changed people live in a changed way."

Write out and memorize Philippians 2:12-13, and then write it out in your own words, making its meaning clear.

Suggested prayer topics

DAY FIVE

DAY SIX

There are a lot of things that happened when you became a Christian. Upon reflection, which of the metaphors we discussed in the talk are the most important for you? Why?
Write out the changes you have already seen.
Suggested prayer topics

When You Stumble

Even though God's power is at work within you, helping you to become more like Jesus, you will stumble. This is not to remove the joy of your new faith; it is to prepare you for the joy of spiritual growth that lies ahead. God knows this and is not surprised, and it does not affect his commitment toward you. What is "sin"? Is temptation sin? How will you tell God that you sinned and are sorry? Does he forgive? Can you be cleansed?

PSALM 51

King David in the Old Testament sinned with a woman named Bathsheba. Psalm 51 is his repentance and call for forgiveness. There is a lot we can learn from David's confession of sin and God's ability and willingness to forgive.

- 51:1 Have mercy on me, O God, according to your steadfast love; according to your abundant mercy blot out my transgressions.
- 51:2 Wash me thoroughly from my iniquity, and cleanse me from my sin!
- 51:3 For I know my transgressions, and my sin is ever before me.
- 51:4 Against you, you only, have I sinned and done what is evil in your sight, so that you may be justified in your words and blameless in your judgment.
- 51:5 Behold, I was brought forth in iniquity, and in sin did my mother conceive me.

3. When You Stumble

51:6	Behold, you delight in truth in the inward being, and you teach me wisdom in the secret heart.
51:7	Purge me with hyssop, and I shall be clean; wash me, and I shall be whiter than snow.
51:8	Let me hear joy and gladness; let the bones that you have broken rejoice.
51:9	Hide your face from my sins, and blot out all my iniquities.
51:10	Create in me a clean heart, O God, and renew a right spirit within me.
51:11	Cast me not away from your presence, and take not your Holy Spirit from me.
51:12	Restore to me the joy of your salvation, and uphold me with a willing spirit.
David co	ontinues by promising God to teach others after he has been forgiven.
51:13	Then I will teach transgressors your ways, and sinners will return to you.
51:14	Deliver me from bloodguiltiness, O God, O God of my salvation, and my tongue will sing aloud of your righteousness.
51:15	O Lord, open my lips, and my mouth will declare your praise.
51:16	For you will not delight in sacrifice, or I would give it; you will not be pleased with a burnt offering.
51:17	The sacrifices of God are a broken spirit; a broken and contrite heart, O God, you will not despise.

DAY ONE

This week we are going to look at the fact that in your new walk with Jesus, you will stumble; you will do something that you shouldn't have done. We don't want to discourage you; rather, we want to help you get ready for it and know how to handle it.
In Psalm 51, verses 1-5, the author (King David) is agreeing with God that his sin is really bad. What are some of the ways in which David makes this abundantly clear?
What else do you learn about sin and confession from this passage?
Suggested prayer topics

3. When You Stumble

DAY TWO

In Psalm 51, verses 6-12, King David looks forward to having his sins forgiven. What are some of those specific joys?
Is there any other encouragement in these verses for you?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY THREE

Before looking at things that might cause a little discouragement, let's focus on the things that are happening in your life? What has changed? What are some of the new joys? It is important to thank God for these.
Suggested prayer topics

3. When You Stumble

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

When you b	pecame a Christian	
You w	vere changed	
But yo	our new life is not automatic	
You m	nust take the next	
What	is the "bad news"?	
Define three	e terms	
1. "Rela	ativism"	
	Definition:	
	Christians believe that God our Father is the has the and the	
	and that he wants the for his creation.	
	"You make known to me the path of life; in your prese at your right hand are pleasures forevermore" (Psalm	

2. "Sin"

D . (111
Defin	ition:

"Let no corrupting talk come out of your mouths, but only such as is good for building up, as fits the occasion, that it may give grace to those who hear.... Let there be no filthiness nor foolish talk nor crude joking, which are out of place, but instead let there be thanksgiving" (Ephesians 4:29; 5:4).

3. "Temptation"

Definition:	
a. Temptation is not	
b. You don't have to	

"In the world you will have tribulation. But take heart; I have overcome the world" (John 16:33).

"No temptation has overtaken you that is not common to man. God is faithful, and he will not let you be tempted beyond your ability, but with the temptation he will also provide the way of escape, that you may be able to endure it" (1 Corinthians 10:13).

3. When You Stumble 31

c. God	is
	"Walk by the Spirit, and you will not gratify the desires of the flesh" (Galatians 5:16).
What will you do w	hen you stumble and miss the mark?
Defining mon	nent
1. Confess you	r sin
Definit	ion:
	"If we say we have no sin, we deceive ourselves, and the truth is not in us. If we confess our sins, he is faithful and just to forgive us our sins and to cleanse us from all unrighteousness" (1 John 1:8-9).
What a	are some of the major points made by Psalm 51?
	a. David makes absolutely no
	b. David agrees with God that sin is
	c. Not because David deserves it but because

What may	/bei	your tende	ncv to	do	instead	of fol	llowina	the	model	of	Psalm	51	?
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		, car corrac	ile, co	~~	11100000	01101			111000	\circ .		· .	•

Practical advice #1:	
Practical advice #2:	

"Confess your sins to one another and pray for one another" (James 5:16).

2. Receive his forgiveness

"If we confess our sins, he is faithful and just to forgive us our sins and to cleanse us from all unrighteousness" (1 John 1:9).

3. Be cleansed

"The Lord is merciful and gracious, slow to anger and abounding in steadfast love. He will not always chide, nor will he keep his anger forever. He does not deal with us according to our sins, nor repay us according to our iniquities. For as high as the heavens are above the earth, so great is his steadfast love toward those who fear him; as far as the east is from the west, so far does he remove our transgressions from us. As a father shows compassion to his children, so the Lord shows compassion to those who fear him. For he knows our frame; he remembers that we are dust" (Psalm 103:8-14).

3. When You Stumble 33

Conclusion

"For when I kept silent, my bones wasted away through my groaning all day long. For day and night your hand was heavy upon me; my strength was dried up as by the heat of summer" (Psalm 32:3-4).

"I acknowledged my sin to you, and I did not cover my iniquity; I said, 'I will confess my transgressions to the Lord,' and you forgave the iniquity of my sin. Blessed is the one whose transgression is forgiven, whose sin is covered. Blessed is the man against whom the Lord counts no iniquity, and in whose spirit there is no deceit" (Psalm 32:5, 1-2).

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. What are some ways in which you already see your life changing? How has God's love and saving power started to change who you are?
- 2. Are there any areas of your life where you think God is asking you to start changing?
- 3. As you look back over your life, are there ways in which relativism had crept in? How did you used to determine what was right and wrong? Do you have any questions about trusting in God's right or wisdom in determining truth? Do you think that God has your best interests in heart? (This is a difficult issue. Please do not be afraid to share openly.)
- 4. Some people are uncomfortable with the word "sin." Are you? What are some "marks" that you know God has already laid out before you?
- 5. Are you a bit overwhelmed with the idea of temptation and sin? Are there any temptations that you will probably face this week that seen too much to handle. Again, please share openly so your friends can help.
- 6. Is there anything in your past that has created a bad picture of God in which you think he wants you to fail? How can we think together about things such that you see God is in fact on your side and desperately wants you to succeed?
- 7. How will your handling of sin, confession, and forgiveness become a "defining moment" in your spiritual life?
- 8. Confession is a difficult topic. Many people find it difficult. Why do you think that is the case? What will work against you confessing early, often, fully, to one another?
- 9. Please read through Psalm 51 again and talk about it. How does it model biblical confession?
- 10. What challenges will you face in receiving God's forgiveness? For example, some people have trouble believing God really loves them, and they think that they have to experience punishment before God will truly forgive them. How about you?

DAY FIVE Write out your memory verse: Psalm 51:10. Read Psalm 51 and write out five things that you did not see earlier about confession.

3. When You Stumble 35

Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX Read Psalm 103 and list five issues in your life that it promises will be cleansed.

Suggested prayer topics

4

Listening To God

A crucial element of any relationship is communication, both listening and speaking. God has spoken to us two basic ways, through creation and through his Word, the Bible. What do the terms "inspiration," "authority," and "canonicity" mean? Can we trust the Bible? How do I listen to God as I read his word? Am I supposed to do anything beyond reading it?

MAIN BIBLE PASSAGE

Paul is writing to his good friend Timothy, encouraging him to trust the Bible (also called "the sacred writings," "Scripture," and the "word") and use them in his life and ministry. It is from the book called "2 Timothy," chapter 3 verse 14 through chapter 4 verse 5. The "man of God" Paul refers to is Timothy.

"But as for you, continue in what you have learned and have firmly believed, knowing from whom you learned it and how from childhood you have been acquainted with the sacred writings, which are able to make you wise for salvation through faith in Christ Jesus. All Scripture is breathed out by God and profitable for teaching, for reproof, for correction, and for training in righteousness, that the man of God may be competent, equipped for every good work.

"I charge you in the presence of God and of Christ Jesus, who is to judge the living and the dead, and by his appearing and his kingdom: preach the word; be ready in season and out of season; reprove, rebuke, and exhort, with complete patience and teaching. For the time is coming when people will not endure sound teaching, but having itching ears they will accumulate for themselves teachers to suit their own passions, and will turn away from listening to the truth and wander off into myths. As for you, always be sober-minded, endure suffering, do the work of an evangelist, fulfill your ministry."

4 . Listening To God

DAY ONE

Read Psalm 19. Verses 1-6 talk about what we can know about God by looking at creation. Verses 7 and following talk about the "law of the Lord," which is the Bible. What does it tell you about how God speaks to us?
Write down what you believe God has been speaking to you about lately.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

Spend some time looking over the table of contents in your Bible and the handout. Become familiar with the names of the books that make up the Bible. Notice which ones are in the Old Testament and which are in the New Testament. (If you don't know what these terms mean, don't worry; we will explain them.)
It is helpful to write out names of the books in the New Testament, just to get familiar with them.
Suggested prayer topics

4 . Listening To God

DAY THREE

Daniel 2 Timonthy, 2,17, 17 (annual 40) and also 2 Data # 1,20, 21
Read 2 Timothy 3:16-17 (page 49) and also 2 Peter 1:20-21.
What do they tell us about the origin of the Bible? Do you believe that the Bible is not a human book?
Currented provertenies
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

etin	nree terms	
	"Revelation"	
	"General Revelation"	
	"What can be known about God is plain to them, because God has shown it them. For his invisible attributes, namely, his eternal power and divine nature have been clearly perceived, ever since the creation of the world, in the thing that have been made" (Romans 1:19-20).	,
	a	
	b	

"The heavens declare the glory of God, and the sky above proclaims his handiwork. Day to day pours out speech, and night to night reveals knowledge. There is no speech, nor are there words, whose voice is not heard. Their voice goes out through all the earth, and their words to the end of the world" (Psalm 19:1-4).

4 . Listening To God 41

3. "Sp	ecific Revelation"			
	the Lord is clean, end	e simple; the prece ment of the Lord is p during forever; the r be desired are they	ots of the Lord ar oure, enlightenin rules of the Lord a than gold, even r	re right, rejoicing the og the eyes; the fear of are true, and righteous much fine gold; sweete
The Bible				
The B	lible is divided into two	parts: the	and the	Testaments
	Books are broken int	co:		
	Chapters are broken	into:		
Four import	ant terms			
1. "Ins	spiration"			
	"All Scripture is breat correction, and for tr			eaching, for reproof, for 3:16).

"No prophecy of Scripture comes from someone's own interpretation. For no prophecy was ever produced by the will of man, but men spoke from God as they were carried along by the Holy Spirit" (2 Peter 1:20-21).

2. "Aut	hority"
	All Scripture is breathed out by God and is profitable for teaching, for reproof, for correcting, for training in righteousness, so that the man of God may be proficient, fully equipped for every good work (2 Timothy 3:16-17).
3. "Car	nonicity"
4. "Tru	stworthy"
What do you	ı do with the Bible?
1	it!
	a. Healthy relationships need
	b. How else will you know
	c. Ask then

"Now we have received not the spirit of the world, but the Spirit who is from God, that we might understand the things freely given us by God. And we impart this in words not taught by human wisdom but taught by the Spirit, interpreting spiritual truths to those who are spiritual" (1 Corinthians 2:12-13).

4 . Listening To God 43

2	on it.
	"Blessed is the man who walks not in the counsel of the wicked, nor stands in the way of sinners, nor sits in the seat of scoffers; but his delight is in the law of the Lord, and on his law he meditates day and night. He is like a tree planted by streams of water that yields its fruit in its season, and its leaf does not wither" (Psalm 1:1-3).
3.	it.
	"I have stored up your word in my heart, that I might not sin against you" (Psalm 119:11). You can purchase memory systems from fighterverses.com (from DesiringGod. org) and bit.ly/memoryversesystem (from the Navigators).
4	it.
	Therefore everyone who hears these words of mine and puts them into practice is like a wise man who built his house on the rock. The rain came down, the streams rose, and the winds blew and beat against that house; yet it did not fall, because it had its foundation on the rock. ut everyone who hears these words of mine and does not put them into practice is like a foolish man who built his house on sand. The rain came down, the streams rose, and the winds blew and beat against that house, and it fell with a great crash" (Matthew 7:24-27).
In the	e process of obeying it, you will come to trust it and be transformed by it.
We c	don't love the Rible: we love its

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. As you look at creation, what are some of the things that stand out to you about God?
- 2. Do you have any questions about how the Bible is divided? Are you a little more comfortable getting around in it?
- 3. We covered a lot of ground when we looked at the four terms: "inspiration"; " authority"; "canonicity"; "trustworthy." You probably will have a lot of questions on these topics if you don't right now, but is there anything in general you need to ask? To learn more, go to bit.ly/mounce-bibliology.
- 4. Think through what communication looks like in a healthy relationship. How can you transfer that information over to your relationship with Jesus?
- 5. When might be the best time for your quiet time?
- 6. Work through some examples of meditation.
- 7. Share some experiences from your last week when you were not sure what to do, and ask your mentor if he or she knows of any verses that apply. How would knowing these verses have changed how you handled the situation?
- 8. What might be some signals that you are being tempted to compartmentalize? How will you work toward obeying from the heart? Think of some situation, and describe the difference between external obedience and obeying from the heart.
- 9. Have your mentor share some experiences of how he or she came to trust the Bible.

4 . Listening To God 45

DAY FIVE			 	
Write out your memory ver	rse: 2 Timothy 3	:16.		
Suggested prayer topics			 	

DAY SIX

Meditation and memorization are often difficult for people. Minds wander during quiet, reflective times, and some of our minds simply go away when we try to memorize. What might help you be more successful? Talk with your mentor about this.				
Suggested prayer topics				

4 . Listening To God 47

5

Speaking With God

Healthy communication requires not only listening but also talking. Prayer is simply talking with God, about anything and everything. He is our new Father, and he wants to hear from you. How do you pray? What do you pray about? What if I have trouble listening to him speaking?

MATTHEW 6:7-15

Jesus' disciples wanted to learn how to pray, and this passage is Jesus' answer. It has traditionally been called, "The Lord's Prayer."

"And when you pray, do not heap up empty phrases as the Gentiles do, for they think that they will be heard for their many words. Do not be like them, for your Father knows what you need before you ask him. Pray then like this:

'Our Father in heaven,
hallowed be your name.
Your kingdom come,
Your will be done,
on earth as it is in heaven.
Give us this day our daily bread,
And forgive us our debts,
as we also have forgiven our debtors.
Lead us not into temptation,
but deliver us from evil.'

For if you forgive others their trespasses, your heavenly Father will also forgive you, but if you do not forgive others their trespasses, neither will your Father forgive your trespasses."

DAY ONE

Think through how you speak with your friends. What are some of the basic ingredients of effective speaking? Honesty? Forthrightness?
If you had a perfect relationship with God and could speak with him perfectly, what would be some of the characteristics of your communication?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

The first half of the Lord's Prayer shows that we are supposed to start our prayers by focusing on God. "Hallowed" means "holy, without sin." God's "kingdom" is his kingly rule in the hearts of his children. Read and reflect on what the first four lines mean.				
Write out six ways in which the truths of these four lines can become true in your life.				
Suggested prayer topics				

5. Speaking With God 51

DAY THREE

Do the same with the end of the prayer that you did yesterday for the first four lines.
Write out six ways in which the truths of the final lines of the prayer can become true in your life.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Introd	luction
	Define "prayer":
	"Pray like this"
"Our l	Father in heaven"
	Prayer startsSpeaking With God with
	"Father"
	"In heaven"
	Balance of "father" and "in heaven"

5. Speaking With God 53

PART 1: PRAYER FOCUSES FIRST AND FOREMOST ON GOD

I. "Hallowed be your name"	
"Hallowed":	
Meaning:	
2. "Your kingdom come"	
Define "kingdom":	
Meaning:	
3. "Your will be done, on earth as it is in heaven"	
God's desires are always done	in heaven.

PART 2: EXPRESS OUR TOTAL DEPENDENCE ON GOD FOR EVERYTHING

4. "Give us this	day our daily bread"
More than	n just food:
yo foo thi kir yo	nerefore I tell you, do not be anxious about your life, what you will eat or what u will drink, nor about your body, what you will put on. Is not life more than od, and the body more than clothing? For the Gentiles seek after all these ngs, and your heavenly Father knows that you need them all. But seek first the agdom of God and his righteousness, and all these things will be added to u. Therefore do not be anxious about tomorrow, for tomorrow will be anxious itself" (Matthew 6:25,32-34).
Needs, no	ot greeds
5. "Forgive us o	ur debts as we also have forgiven our debtors."
Define "d	ebts":
Meaning:	
Relationsl	nip between forgiving and being forgiven
wi	r if you forgive other people when they sin against you, your heavenly Father Il also forgive you. But if you do not forgive others their sins, your Father will t forgive your sins (Matt 6:14-15).

5. Speaking With God 55

"Be kind to one another, tenderhearted, forgiving one another, as God in Christ forgave you" (Ephesians 4:32).	
"So also my heavenly Father will do to every one of you, if you do not forgive your brother from your heart" (Matthew 18:35).	
6. "And lead us not into temptation, but deliver us from evil."	
"Let no one say when he is tempted, 'I am being tempted by God,' for God cannot be tempted with evil, and he himself tempts no one. But each person is tempted when he is lured and enticed by his own desire" (James 1:13-14).	
Meaning:	
Practical Suggestions	
1. Lack of concentration	
2. Memorize it	
3. Pray the Pattern of the Lord's Prayer	

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. What preconceptions did you have about prayer when you first became a Christian? Which ones were good, and which ones were bad?
- 2. Does your relationship with your earthly father help or hurt your relationship with your heavenly father? This is an important point; if your idea of a father is negative, you will have to consciously work through that as your relationship with God progresses.
- 3. What are some experiences you have had to which you responded in awe? The first time you saw the Milky Way? Your first glimpse of a giant redwood? How can these experiences help you understand the awesomeness of God?
- 4. What are some ways in which your life might hurt God's reputation? Why would someone praise God for what you do or don't do, say or don't say?
- 5. What are some ways in which God's kingly rule has been growing in your own life? How might that rule move out to people with whom you come in contact?
- 6. It's hard, isn't it, to keep saying "not my will but God's be done"? You can be honest; we all struggle with this in some areas of our life. What would be an encouragement to you to truly pray, "your will be done"? What would be an impediment?
- 7. Most if not all of your pre-conversion life was lived under the influence of the world saying, "Be self-sufficient!" "You don't need any help!" "God is only for weaklings." So admitting your dependence on God for all things and not just for salvation might be something you have to work at. Ask your mentor how God has provided for him or her. Have you had a chance yet to see this happen in your own life?
- 8. What is the difference between "needs" and "greeds"? How will you keep them separate?
- 9. Learning to forgive others is going to take most people some time. Have you ever been hurt so badly by someone else that you have not yet forgiven them? What is keeping you from forgiving them now? Would you be willing to commit this situation to the Lord in prayer, asking that he help you learn to forgive?
- 10. How can you remind yourself, when you are in the midst of a difficult situation, that God is with you, delivering your from evil and the Evil One?
- 11. Do some role playing with your mentor on conversational prayer. How might God's Spirit talk to you while you are reading your Bible? How could you respond?
- 12. Practice praying through the Lord's Prayer but inserting the specifics of your life into the prayer. For example, "Give us this day our daily bread. Father, you know that I cannot pay my medical bills. Please help me trust you with this."

5. Speaking With God 57

DAY FIVE

Memorize the Lord's Prayer. Be sure to think through what each phrase means as you memorize.
Pray through the Lord's Prayer, making it match some specific circumstances in your life. For example: "Father, thank you for talking with me, and listening. Thank you for being close to me as a dad. Help me to understand that you spoke the galaxies into existence; help me never to think of you as a small, unimportant, weak person."
Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX

Prayer is about God, his honor and our dependence upon him. Yes, God is concerned about the details of your life, but you need to learn not to let your prayers be all about yourself. It is a difficult balance. List some ways that might help you focus on God while you at the same time ask him to meet your needs. This is a difficult question; you may want to ask your mentor for help.
Suggested prayer topics

5. Speaking With God 59



Learning More About God

When you became a Christian, you understood certain things about God. But did you know that he knows everything? That he is present everywhere? That he is all-powerful? How then should we respond to a fuller knowledge of God? What is worship? How should we respond to what we know of God?

PSALM 139 (SELECTED VERSES)

O Lord, you have searched me and known me! You know when I sit down and when I rise up; you discern my thoughts from afar. You search out my path and my lying down and are acquainted with all my ways. Even before a word is on my tongue, behold, O Lord, you know it altogether. You hem me in, behind and before, and lay your hand upon me. Such knowledge is too wonderful for me; it is high; I cannot attain it.

Where shall I go from your Spirit? Or where shall I flee from your presence? If I ascend to heaven, you are there! If I make my bed in Sheol, you are there! If I take the wings of the morning and dwell in the uttermost parts of the sea, even there your hand shall lead me, and your right hand shall hold me. If I say, 'Surely the darkness shall cover me, and the light about me be night,' even the darkness is not dark to you; the night is bright as the day, for darkness is as light with you.

For you formed my inward parts; you knitted me together in my mother's womb. I praise you, for I am fearfully and wonderfully made. Wonderful are your works; my soul knows it very well. My frame was not hidden from you, when I was being made in secret, intricately woven in the depths of the earth. Your eyes saw my unformed substance; in your book were written, every one of them, the days that were formed for me, when as yet there were none of them.

How precious to me are your thoughts, O God! How vast is the sum of them! If I would count them, they are more than the sand. I awake, and I am still with you.

DAY ONE 1. What is Psalm 139 saying about God's knowledge? 2. What is Psalm 139 saying about God's presence? 3. What is the Psalmist's response to what he knows about God?

Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

In the talk for this week we are going to enlarge our vision of God. We will talk about the fact that God knows everything, exists everywhere, and is all-powerful. It is hard for human beings to come to grasp with the enormity of God, but we will try to do so.
1. What does it mean for God to know everything? Does he know your thoughts? Your secrets? The things done in private? How does this make you feel? Does it bring you comfort? Why?
2. There is no place you can go where God does not exist. You are probably used to thinking that you can hide, but you can't hide from God. Does this bring you comfort or discomfort? Why? Are there places you go in life that cause you to fear? How does knowing that God is there affect your actions?
3. This is a hard one. God is all-powerful. Anything he wants to do, he can. Do you believe this? What might lead you to question the truth of the statement?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY THREE

In Isaiah 6:1-8, the writer is given a glimpse of heaven and the throne room of God. What does Isaiah learn about God. How does he respond to each piece of information?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Introduction	
What a	are God's "attributes"?
"Incompreh	ensibility"
Defini	tion:
	"For as the heavens are higher than the earth, so are my ways higher than your ways and my thoughts than your thoughts" (Isaiah 55:9).
1. "Omniscie	ence"
Defini	tion:
	"O Lord, you have searched me and known me! You know when I sit down and when I rise up; you discern my thoughts from afar. You search out my path and my lying down and are acquainted with all my ways. Even before a word is on my tongue, behold, O Lord, you know it altogether" (Psalm 139:1-4).

Past, p	resent,	and	future
---------	---------	-----	--------

"I am God, and there is no other; I am God, and there is none like me, declaring the end from the beginning and from ancient times things not yet done" (Isaiah 46:9-10).

"Oh, the depth of the riches and wisdom and knowledge of God! How unsearchable are his judgments and how inscrutable his ways!" (Romans 11:33).

"Omnipresence"

Definition:		
-------------	--	--

"Where shall I go from your Spirit? Or where shall I flee from your presence? If I ascend to heaven, you are there! If I make my bed in Sheol, you are there! If I take the wings of the morning and dwell in the uttermost parts of the sea, even there your hand shall lead me, and your right hand shall hold me. If I say, 'Surely the darkness shall cover me, and the light about me be night,' even the darkness is not dark to you; the night is bright as the day, for darkness is as light with you" (Psalm 139:7-12).

"In him we live and move and have our being" (Acts 17:28).

"Omnipotence"	
Definition:	
"Sovereign": _	
womb. I works; r was bei saw my	I formed my inward parts; you knitted me together in my mother's praise you, for I am fearfully and wonderfully made. Wonderful are yourny soul knows it very well. My frame was not hidden from you, when I made in secret, intricately woven in the depths of the earth. Your eyes unformed substance; in your book were written, every one of them, the at were formed for me, when as yet there were none of them" (Psalm 16).
"Our Go	od is in the heavens; he does all that he pleases" (Psalm 115:3).
How do we respond	to this revelation? We worship him!
"Worth-ship":	
Hebrew and G	reek mean:
"Bowing all tha	t we are before all that he is."
a. Wors	nip is our

b. Worship is then _____

Definition: _	
---------------	--

"In the year that King Uzziah died I saw the Lord sitting upon a throne, high and lifted up; and the train of his robe filled the temple. Above him stood the seraphim. Each had six wings: with two he covered his face, and with two he covered his feet, and with two he flew. And one called to another and said: 'Holy, holy, holy is the Lord of hosts; the whole earth is full of his glory!' And the foundations of the thresholds shook at the voice of him who called, and the house was filled with smoke And I said: 'Woe is me! For I am lost; for I am a man of unclean lips, and I dwell in the midst of a people of unclean lips; for my eyes have seen the King, the Lord of hosts!' Then one of the seraphim flew to me, having in his hand a burning coal that he had taken with tongs from the altar. And he touched my mouth and said: 'Behold, this has touched your lips; your guilt is taken away, and your sin atoned for.' And I heard the voice of the Lord saying, 'Whom shall I send, and who will go for us?' Then I said, 'Here am I! Send me.'" (Isaiah 6:1-8).

Three cycles of revelation and response.

1			
١.	 	 	

Challenge: Never let God become small.

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. What were some of the pictures you had of God before you became a Christian? Which ones were accurate, and which ones were wrong? How will you go about unlearning the wrong pictures?
- 2. Does it bother you that you will never fully understand God? How will his "incomprehensibility" help you worship him more fully?
 - Do you believe God is omniscient? How will you come to a fuller understanding of what this means? List five ways in which God's omniscience will impact your life. Please be specific. Do you believe God is omnipresent? How will you come to a fuller understanding of what this means? List five ways in which God's omnipresence will impact your life. Please be specific.

d
e
Do you believe God is omnipotent? How will you come to a fuller understanding of what this means? List five ways in which God's omnipotence will impact your life. Please be specific.
a
b
C
d
e
Did you have any ideas of Christian worship before you became a Christian? Were any of them wrong?
The Isaiah 6:1-8 passage is especially powerful. In preparation for this talk you listed what Isaiah learned about God. Try to put yourself in his shoes, and how would you respond to each piece of revelation about the character of God?
a. Holiness
b. Mercy

70 Life is a Journey

c. Will to have his message proclaimed

DAY FIVE
Write out your memory verse: Isaiah 6:3.
Write out what you have learned about God's holiness.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX

As you have been reflecting on the talk, what practical applications are you making about the four terms we learned?
1. "Incomprehensibility"
2. "Omniscience"
3. "Omnipresence"
4. "Omnipotence"
Suggested prayer topics

7

Learning More About Who Jesus Is

Jesus is the best known person in history. He has had more affect on world history than any other leader or philosophy or political movement. Many people know the name, but who is he? What did he say about himself? What did his followers say about him? And what is the significance and relevance of these questions and our answers?

ACTS 2:22-41 (SELECTED VERSES)

"Men of Israel, hear these words: Jesus of Nazareth, a man attested to you by God with mighty works and wonders and signs that God did through him in your midst, as you yourselves know-this Jesus, delivered up according to the definite plan and foreknowledge of God, you crucified and killed by the hands of lawless men. God raised him up, loosing the pangs of death, because it was not possible for him to be held by it.... This Jesus God raised up, and of that we all are witnesses. Being therefore exalted at the right hand of God, and having received from the Father the promise of the Holy Spirit, he has poured out this that you yourselves are seeing and hearing.... Let all the house of Israel therefore know for certain that God has made him both Lord and Christ, this Jesus whom you crucified.' Now when they heard this they were cut to the heart, and said to Peter and the rest of the apostles, 'Brothers, what shall we do?' And Peter said to them, 'Repent and be baptized every one of you in the name of Jesus Christ for the forgiveness of your sins, and you will receive the gift of the Holy Spirit. For the promise is for you and for your children and for all who are far off, everyone whom the Lord our God calls to himself.' And with many other words he bore witness and continued to exhort them, saying, 'Save yourselves from this crooked generation.' So those who received his word were baptized, and there were added that day about three thousand souls."

DAY ONE Before you became a Christian, who did you think Jesus was? Based on your conversion, who do you think he is now? What led you to think differently?

Suggested prayer topics

DATIWO
Daniel Data (/a a a mana m. im. A ata 2 (m. a m. 72 ala a m.)
Read Peter's sermon in Acts 2 (page 73 above).
What does Peter tell you about who Jesus is? List as many as you can see.
Suggested prayer topics
Help me to know you, God. Thank you for what I already know. I look forward to all I will know and experience with you as our relationship grows.

DAY THREE

We are next going to look at the doctrine of Jesus' "incarnation," that he was God incarnate, God made flesh. This means we believe Jesus was fully God and fully human. If this does not make a lot of sense to you, welcome to the crowd. We believe it because the Bible teaches it, but it ultimately remains a mystery.
When you think of Jesus being fully human, as human as you and I are, what does that make you think of?
Read the following verses. What do they tell you about Jesus being a human being?
1 John 2:6
Hebrews 2:17
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

ntrodu	ction: "Who is Jesus?"
	I decided to know nothing among you except Jesus Christ and him crucified" (1 Corinthians 2:2).
C	Common answers to this question:
Ρ	Peter's first sermon in Acts 2 (on page 67)
'Jesus c	of Nazareth"
J	lesus was a real human being
Jesus is	s "Lord"
k <u></u>	yrios means:
J	lesus birth (Luke 1:35)
	"The Holy Spirit will come upon you, and the power of the Most High will overshadow you; therefore the child to be born will be called holy—the Son of God" (Luke 1:35).

"Son of God" in John 20:31

"These are written so that you may believe that Jesus is the Christ, the Son of God, and that by believing you may have life in his name" (John 20:31).

"Son of God" in Mark 1:1

Not "son" in the sense that we use the word

"This was why the Jews were seeking all the more to kill him, because not only was he breaking the Sabbath, but he was even calling God his own Father, making himself equal with God" (John 5:18).

"Son of God" and "God" in the gospel of John

"In the beginning was the Word, and the Word was with God, and the Word was God" (John 1:1).

"No one has ever seen God; the only God, who is at the Father's side, he has made him known" (John 1:18; see also John 20:31).

"Jesus said to them, 'Truly, truly, I say to you, before Abraham was, I am.'" (John 8:58).

"Thomas answered him, 'My Lord and my God!'" (John 20:28).

	Christ's divinity outside the gospels
	"Our great God and Savior Jesus Christ" (Titus 2:13).
	"The righteousness of our God and Savior Jesus Christ" (2 Peter 1:1).
"Lord"	in Acts 2:36
"Incarnation	u
Definit	ion:
Jesus	was fully human
	"And the Word became flesh and dwelt among us, and we have seen his glory, glory as of the only Son from the Father, full of grace and truth" (John 1:14).
Yet wit	hout sin
	"For we do not have a high priest who is unable to sympathize with our weaknesses, but one who in every respect has been tempted as we are, yet without sin" (Hebrews 4:15)

	fitting that we should have such a high priest, holy, innocent, ed from sinners, and exalted above the heavens" (Hebrews
Jesus was fully God	
Mystery	
Is the Incarnation important?	
1. The only way	could even be a possibility
Fully human	
"He had to	be made like his brothers in every respect, so that he might

80 Life is a Journey

propitiation for the sins of the people" (Hebrews 2:17).

become a merciful and faithful high priest in the service of God, to make

After this I looked, and behold, a great multitude that no one could number, from every nation, from all tribes and peoples and languages, standing before the throne and before the Lamb, clothed in white robes, with palm branches in their hands, and crying out with a loud voice, "Salvation belongs to our God who sits on the throne, and to the Lamb!" And all the angels were standing around the throne and around the elders and the four living creatures, and they fell on their faces before the throne and worshiped God, saying, "Amen! Blessing and glory and wisdom and thanksgiving and honor and power and might be to our God forever and ever! Amen." (Revelation 7:9-12).

2. Necessary if you are a	
---------------------------	--

"By this you know the Spirit of God: every spirit that confesses that Jesus Christ has come in the flesh is from God, and every spirit that does not confess Jesus is not from God" (1 John 4:2-3).

"If you confess with your mouth that Jesus is Lord and believe in your heart that God raised him from the dead, you will be saved" (Romans 10:9).

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. Before you became a Christian, who did you think Jesus was? It is important to identify these beliefs so that they do not creep into your thinking now.
- 2. Which of these previous ideas were the most wrong and potentially the most damaging?
- 3. Are you surprised that Jesus was as human as you are? How does that encourage you?
- 4. Do you believe that Jesus is fully God? If this is difficult for you to accept, be sure to spend some time talking about it. You really should not continue any further until this issue is settled.
- 5. Which two of the verses were the most helpful in showing you that Jesus is God?
- 6. How does it encourage you to know that Jesus is fully God?
- 7. How will you answer someone who says, perhaps as you used to answer, that Jesus was a good man but nothing more? If you were to ask them why they think Jesus was a good man, how do you think they would respond?
- 8. How does the fact that Jesus was fully human help you understand that salvation can be a reality?
- 9. How does the fact that Jesus was fully God help you understand that salvation can be a reality?

DAY FIVE
Write out and memorize these two verses.
John 1:1
Romans 10:9
Suggested prayer topics

Read Philippians 2:5-11. It is a discussion of Jesus' humility, how being God he condescended to become a human being for our sake.
Identify what you learn about Jesus as God and about Jesus as human in this passage.
Suggested prayer topics

8

Learning More About What Jesus Did

Jesus did many things while on earth, but the most significant of all was dying on the cross. But what exactly happened? What was accomplished? What does the Bible mean when it talks about Jesus being the "lamb of God"? Is there anything that can help me understand the significance of his death. Do I need to be reminded about it on a regular basis?

JOHN 19:16-30 (SELECTED VERSES); MARK 15:38

So they took Jesus, and he went out, bearing his own cross, to the place called the place of a skull, which in Aramaic is called Golgotha. There they crucified him, and with him two others, one on either side, and Jesus between them. Pilate also wrote an inscription and put it on the cross. It read, "Jesus of Nazareth, the King of the Jews." Many of the Jews read this inscription, for the place where Jesus was crucified was near the city, and it was written in Aramaic, in Latin, and in Greek. So the chief priests of the Jews said to Pilate, "Do not write, 'The King of the Jews,' but rather, 'This man said, I am King of the Jews.' "Pilate answered, "What I have written I have written."

When the soldiers had crucified Jesus, they took his garments and divided them into four parts, one part for each soldier; also his tunic. But the tunic was seamless, woven in one piece from top to bottom, so they said to one another, "Let us not tear it, but cast lots for it to see whose it shall be." This was to fulfill the Scripture which says, "They divided my garments among them, and for my clothing they cast lots." So the soldiers did these things.

After this, Jesus, knowing that all was now finished, said (to fulfill the Scripture), "I thirst." A jar full of sour wine stood there, so they put a sponge full of the sour wine on a hyssop branch and held it to his mouth. When Jesus had received the sour wine, he said, "It is finished," and he bowed his head and gave up his spirit.

And the curtain of the temple was torn in two, from top to bottom.

DAY ONE

700 years before Jesus was born, the prophet Isaiah wrote about Jesus' death and what it would accomplish. Read these verses from Isaiah 52:13-53:12 and see what he tells you about Jesus, whom Isaiah calls God's "servant."

"He was despised and rejected by men;
a man of sorrows, and acquainted with grief;
and as one from whom men hide their faces
he was despised, and we esteemed him not" (53:3).

"But he was wounded for our transgressions; he was crushed for our iniquities; upon him was the chastisement that brought us peace, and with his stripes we are healed" (53:5)

"Yet we esteemed him stricken, smitten by God, and afflicted" (53:4).

"All we like sheep have gone astray;
we have turned every one to his own way;
and the Lord has laid on him
the iniquity of us all" (53:6).

"He was oppressed, and he was afflicted,
yet he opened not his mouth;
like a lamb that is led to the slaughter,
and like a sheep that before its shearers is silent,
so he opened not his mouth" (53:7).

Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

All of the gospels tell the story of Jesus' death. We will be talking about the gospel of John, so you may want to read the account in another gospel, perhaps Mark 15:33-41.
There is a curtain in the temple that separates a place called "The Holy of Holies" from the rest of the temple. The actual presence of God used to dwell in this place. It is separated from the rest of the temple with a six inch curtain. Only the High Priest could go in, and only once a year, symbolizing the holiness of God and the sinfulness of people. The curtain represents God's presence among his people as well as their separation from him.
When Jesus died, he ripped this curtain in two. What do you think that symbolizes?
Suggested prayer topics

8. Learning More About What Jesus Did

DAY THREE

The Bible says that only Jesus' death on the cross makes it possible to have our sins forgiven, and for you and me to be given access directly into God's presence. What are some ways that the world says our sins can be forgiven? Why do most people think that we should all get to go to heaven?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

ntroduction
"Behold, the Lamb of God, who takes way the sin of the world" (John 1:29).
Definition of the "atonement":
'Lamb of God"
Sacrificial system
If his gift for a burnt offering is from the flock, from the sheep or goats, he shall bring a male without blemish, priests shall throw its blood against the sides of the altar. And he shall cut it into pieces, with its head and its fat, and the priest shall arrange them on the wood that is on the fire on the altar, but the entrails and the legs he shall wash with water. And the priest shall offer all of it and burn it on the altar; it is a burnt offering, a food offering with a pleasing aroma to the Lord" (Leviticus 1:10-13).
Two principles that help us understand the cross
1
2

"Substitutionary Atonement"

"He was wounded for our transgressions; he was crushed for our iniquities; upon him was the chastisement that brought us peace, and with his stripes we are healed. All we like sheep have gone astray; we have turned every one to his own way; and the Lord has laid on him the iniquity of us all" (Isaiah 53:5-6).

"Who takes away the sin of the world"

"For our sake he made him to be sin who knew no sin, so that in him we might become the righteousness of God" (2 Corinthians 5:21).

Ramification #1: Only the Lamb of God can take away sin

I am the way, and the truth, and the life. No one comes to the Father except through me (John 14:6).

There is salvation in no one else, for there is no other name under heaven given among men by which we must be saved (Acts 4:12).

Ramification #2: "Sufficiency of the cross"
He is the atoning sacrifice for our sins, and not only for ours but also for the sing of the whole world" (1 John 2:1, NIV).
Definition:
Sufficiency illustrated
1
"It is finished" (John 19:30).
2
"The curtain of the temple was torn in two, from top to bottom" (Mark 15:38).
Religion tries to sew the curtain back up

Atonement requires response

"For this is the will of my Father, that everyone who looks on the Son and believes in him should have eternal life, and I will raise him up on the last day" (John 6:40).
"Repent and be baptized every one of you in the name of Jesus Christ for the forgiveness of your sins" (Acts 2:38).
"For by grace you have been saved through faith" (Ephesians 2:8).
Grace:
Faith:
Communion as a teaching tool
Communion as a teaching tool
"Lord's Supper"; "Eucharist"
History of Passover (Exodus 12)

For I received from the Lord what I also delivered to you, that the Lord Jesus on the night when he was betrayed took bread, and when he had given thanks, he broke it, and said, "This is my body which is for you. Do this in remembrance of me." In the same way also he took the cup, after supper, saying, "This cup is the new covenant in my blood. Do this, as often as you drink it, in remembrance of me." For as often as you eat this bread and drink the cup, you proclaim the Lord's death until he comes (1 Corinthians 11:23-26).
Bread now symbolizes
Cup now symbolizes

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. In our first time together we reviewed your conversion. Much of this talk covers the same ground, so it is important to revisit the question. Is there anything in this talk that made you wonder whether you really understand your conversion? Are you a Christian?
- 2. To many, the idea of animal sacrifice may be repulsive. And yet, the picture painted in Leviticus is helpful as we try to understand the holiness of God, the vileness of sin, the guilt of the sinner, and the mercy of our forgiving God. What in this picture do you find helpful?
- 3. The prophet Isaiah wrote over 700 years before the time of Christ, and his understanding of Jesus' death is pivotal in our understanding of the Atonement. Which statement in Isaiah's prophecy (53:4-6) do you find especially helpful? You may want to read the entire 53rd chapter as it all deals with Christ's death.
- 4. Jesus claims to be the unique path to God. How would you answer someone who says that "All roads lead to God," that all sincere people eventually will arrive at heaven?
- 5. The doctrine of the "Sufficiency of the cross" is important to understand. Is there anything in your past that may cause you to think that your sins can not be totally forgiven and that you can not now come directly into the presence of God?
- 6. Are there any current religious practices in which you are engaged that might be suggesting Jesus' work really is not finished and that he needs your help?
- 7. The picture of the temple veil ripping completely in two is a powerful picture of what happened on the cross. How does the imagery help you understand the Atonement?
- 8. Time for a little more role playing. Let's say you meet someone who says that Jesus' death on the cross paid the sin of the whole world, and therefore everyone is going to heaven. How will you respond?
- 9. In your own words, explain the Jewish Passover. You may want to read all of Exodus 12.
- 10. In your own words, explain how Jesus reinterpreted the Passover to now point to his death.

DAY FIVE
Write out and memorize John 1:29.
Reflect on the imagery of a lamb being slaughtered by the hand of a sinner, which is you. What do you learn from the imagery?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX

Is there some way in your own culture to explain to someone else the significance of the temple veil ripping in two? Is there some way to use images common to where you live that might explain the same truth of the sufficiency of the cross?
Suggested prayer topics

9

Learning More About The Holy Spirit

Christians are monotheists; we believe in one God. But we are also Trinitarians; we believe in three "persons" of the Trinity – God the Father, God the Son, and God the Holy Spirit. Who is this third member of the Trinity? What actually does he do? What is his on-going role in my life? What does it mean to be led and empowered by the Holy Spirit? Do I have to do anything, or does he do all the work? Where would we be if it were not for the work of the Holy Spirit?

JOHN 16:4B-11; GALATIANS 5:16-26

"I did not say these things to you from the beginning, because I was with you. But now I am going to him who sent me, and none of you asks me, 'Where are you going?' But because I have said these things to you, sorrow has filled your heart. Nevertheless, I tell you the truth: it is to your advantage that I go away, for if I do not go away, the Helper will not come to you. But if I go, I will send him to you. And when he comes, he will convict the world concerning sin and righteousness and judgment: concerning sin, because they do not believe in me; concerning righteousness, because I go to the Father, and you will see me no longer; concerning judgment, because the ruler of this world is judged."

"But I say, walk by the Spirit, and you will not gratify the desires of the flesh. For the desires of the flesh are against the Spirit, and the desires of the Spirit are against the flesh, for these are opposed to each other, to keep you from doing the things you want to do. But if you are led by the Spirit, you are not under the law. Now the works of the flesh are evident: sexual immorality, impurity, sensuality, idolatry, sorcery, enmity, strife, jealousy, fits of anger, rivalries, dissensions, divisions, envy, drunkenness, orgies, and things like these. I warn you, as I warned you before, that those who do such things will not inherit the kingdom of God. But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, self-control; against such things there is no law. And those who belong to Christ Jesus have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires. If we live by the Spirit, let us also walk by the Spirit. Let us not become conceited, provoking one another, envying one another."

DAY ONE

Jesus knew that he was going to die. In preparation he gave his disciples many last-minute instructions. Among these was the news that just as Jesus had helped them, so also God was going to send "another Helper" who would never leave them.
Read John 14:16-17. Write out what Jesus tells us about this new Helper.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

The Bible tells us many things about this "new Helper," who we call the "Holy Spirit." Here are a few. Summarize each passage in your own words. "In him [i.e., Jesus] you also, when you heard the word of truth, the gospel of your salvation, and believed in him, were sealed with the promised Holy Spirit, who is the guarantee of our inheritance until we acquire possession of it, to the praise of his glory" (Ephesians 1:13-14).
"But when the kindness and love of God our Savior appeared, he saved us, not because of righteous things we had done, but because of his mercy. He saved us through the washing of rebirth and renewal by the Holy Spirit, whom he poured out on us generously through Jesus Christ our Savior" (Titus 3:4-6).
"The Spirit himself bears witness with our spirit that we are children of God, and if children, then heirs—heirs of God and fellow heirs with Christ" (Romans 8:16-17).
"Likewise the Spirit helps us in our weakness. For we do not know what to pray for as we ought, but the Spirit himself intercedes for us with groanings too deep for words" (Romans 8:26).
Suggested prayer topics

DAY THREE

Suggested prayer topics

Paul tells the church in Galatia that they should "walk by the Spirit." This mean that the Holy Spirit was present to help them by guiding them so they would know what to do and also empowering them to be able to do what is right. The "fruit" signifies the changes in their lives that the Holy Spirit would encourage them to do. Read Galatians 5:16-26.
Of the fruits that Paul lists, which ones have started to characterize your life? Which "desires of the flesh" still tempt you?

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

ntroc	luction		
	Define	e "monotheists":	
	Define	e "Trinitarians":	
First A	Activity	: Regeneration	
	Defini	tion:	
	1. Beg	ins with	of sin
		"And when he comes, he will convict the world concerning sin a righteousness and judgment" (John 16:8).	nnd
	2. The	Holy Spirit	people to God
		"No one can come to me unless the Father who sent me draws	him" (John 6:44).
	3. The	Holy Spirit is the actual of regeneration	
		"Truly, truly, I say to you, unless one is born of water and the Spi enter the kingdom of God" (John 3:5).	rit, he cannot
		"But when the goodness and loving kindness of God our Savior saved us, not because of works done by us in righteousness, but his own mercy, by the washing of regeneration and renewal of twhom he poured out on us richly through Jesus Christ our Savior	it according to the Holy Spirit,

"In him you also, when you heard the word of truth, the gospel of your salvation, and believed in him, were sealed with the promised Holy Spirit, who is the guarantee of our inheritance until we acquire possession of it, to the praise of his glory" (Ephesians 1:13-14; see also 2 Corinthians 1:22; 5:5).
Second activity of the Holy Spirit: Indwelling
"I will ask the Father, and he will give you another Helper, to be with you forever, even the Spirit of truth, whom the world cannot receive, because it neither sees him nor knows him. You know him, for he dwells with you and will be in you" (John 14:15-17).
The Holy Spirit is personally involved in your life helping you
1. Daily he:
"But I say, walk by the Spirit, and you will not gratify the desires of the flesh" (Galatians 5:16).
a.
b.
2. Daily he:
"Work out your own salvation with fear and trembling, for it is God who works in

4. The Holy Spirit _____ our regeneration

102 Life is a Journey

you, both to will and to work for his good pleasure" (Philippians 2:12-13).

"Be keener than ever to work out the salvation that God has given you with a

proper sense of awe and responsibility. For it is God who is at work within you, giving you the will and the power to achieve his purpose" (Phillips translation).

Empowerment

1. One way the Holy Spirit empowers is to
(Listed in 1 Corinthians 12:4-11, 28-31; Ephesians 4:11-12; Romans 12:3-8; 1 Peter 4:10-11).
2. Purpose of the Spirit's guidance and empowerment:
"Beloved, we are God's children now, and what we will be has not yet appeared; but we know that when he appears we shall be like him, because we shall see him as he is" (1 John 3:2).
3. Requires our co-operation
"Do not quench the Spirit" (1 Thessalonians 5:19).
"And do not grieve the Holy Spirit of God, by whom you were sealed for the day

"How much worse punishment, do you think, will be deserved by the one who has spurned the Son of God, and has profaned the blood of the covenant by which he was sanctified, and has outraged the Spirit of grace?" (Hebrews 10:29).

4. What does it look like to be empowered?

of redemption" (Ephesians 4:30).

"On the last day of the feast, the great day, Jesus stood up and cried out, 'If anyone thirsts, let him come to me and drink. Whoever believes in me, as the

Scripture has said, "Out of his heart will flow rivers of living water." ' " (John 7:37-38).

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. The Trinity can be a confusing teaching because it ultimately is a mystery. How would you explain it to another person, especially a child?
- 2. As you look back over you life before your conversion, can you think of any events in which you now see that the Holy Spirit was active, especially when you did not recognize him at the time?
- 3. Since the time of your conversion, have you noticed any events in which the Spirit has been active in sealing you, confirming your faith in Christ and protecting you from harm?
- 4. In what ways has the Holy Spirit been guiding you? What passages of the Bible have spoken directly to you? Have you experienced and recognized his leading?
- 5. What about his empowerment? How has he given you the strength to do something that previous to your conversion you were unable to do?
- 6. What are your natural gifts? What are you really good at? As you grow in your Christian walk, how might your new supernatural gifting add to your natural gifting? Do you see that you have a new ability that you never had before? This process may take some time to recognize, so don't be discouraged if you can't identify your spiritual gifting.
- 7. Given your personality, how might you quench or grieve the Spirit? How will you prepare yourself so that if (or when) you do, you can be sensitive to it and stop?
- 8. Given your personality, will it be difficult for you to confess your inability to do the work that God has placed before you? If so, what will you do about it?

_
_
_
_
_

Thankfulness to God for your regeneration; increased sensitivity to the Spirit's leading; willingness to let the Spirit work through you; a desire to never be lazy and sit back, doing nothing for your spiritual growth.

DAY SIX

Read Romans 8. This is a marvelous chapter on the role of the Holy Spirit in your life. There are many promises and some warnings scattered throughout the chapter. Write them down and claim them for your own.

Suggested prayer topics

Thankfulness that even in the midst of difficult and trying times, there is no one to condemn you and nothing that can separate you from God's love.

10

Walking With God

When you became a Christian, you started to walk with God. It is a day-by-day process in which sin has less hold on your life and you more and more look like Jesus. But some days are more difficult than others, especially when difficult things happen. Why do these "bad things" happen? Can I keep back parts of myself from God if doing so helps me avoid pain? Are there any consequences to allowing sin in some parts of my life? What does it mean that Jesus is both "Savior" and "Lord"?

ROMANS 12:1-2 (IN DIFFERENT TRANSLATIONS)

"I appeal to you therefore, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your bodies as a living sacrifice, holy and acceptable to God, which is your spiritual worship. Do not be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewal of your mind, that by testing you may discern what is the will of God, what is good and acceptable and perfect" (English Standard Version).

"Therefore, I urge you, brothers, in view of God's mercy, to offer your bodies as living sacrifices, holy and pleasing to God—this is your spiritual act of worship. Do not conform any longer to the pattern of this world, but be transformed by the renewing of your mind. Then you will be able to test and approve what God's will is—his good, pleasing and perfect will" (New International Version).

"And so, dear brothers and sisters, I plead with you to give your bodies to God. Let them be a living and holy sacrifice—the kind he will accept. When you think of what he has done for you, is this too much to ask? Don't copy the behavior and customs of this world, but let God transform you into a new person by changing the way you think. Then you will know what God wants you to do, and you will know how good and pleasing and perfect his will really is" (New Living Translation).

10. Walking With God

DAY ONE

Over the past several weeks we have talked quite a bit about how your life as a Christian will be different from what it was before. What are some ways in which your life has been changing since you became a Christian?

Suggested prayer topics

Help me to rejoice in the good I see happening, and not get discouraged about what is still difficult.

DAY TWO

Spend some time reading through the different translations of Romans 12:1-2 (page 119). The latter translations are a little more interpretive because they want to help you understand what the verses mean.
What are some areas in your life where God might want to do some more changing? We will call these your "areas of challenge."
Suggested prayer topics

10. Walking With God

DAY THREE

Some of the things you will hear in the next talk may be a little strong. We are going to talk about some of the challenges you might have as the months go by, and perhaps you are already experiencing some of them right now.
Do you tend to get discouraged? Ask your mentor for practical ways to keep moving forward in your Christian walk.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Definition of "sanctification"
"I appeal to you therefore, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your bodies as a living sacrifice, holy and acceptable to God, which is your spiritual worship. Do not be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewal of your mind, that by testing you may discern what is the will of God, what is good and acceptable and perfect" (Romans 12:1-2).
What does spiritual growth look like?
Practical question of sanctification:
Role of difficult circumstances in your life
Did I do something wrong?
"All who desire to live a godly life in Christ Jesus will be persecuted" (2 Timothy 3:12).

10. Walking With God

God wants to do something right!

"In this you rejoice, though now for a little while, if necessary, you have been grieved by various trials, so that the tested genuineness of your faith—more precious than gold that perishes though it is tested by fire—may be found to result in praise and glory and honor at the revelation of Jesus Christ" (1 Peter 1:6-7).

"We rejoice in our sufferings, knowing that suffering produces endurance, and endurance produces character, and character produces hope" (Romans 5:3-4).

"Count it all joy, my brothers, when you meet trials of various kinds, for you know that the testing of your faith produces steadfastness. And let steadfastness have its full effect, that you may be perfect and complete, lacking in nothing" (James 1:2-4).

Temptation to compartmentalize

"Compartmentalize":	
"Life is a patchwork quilt."	,
1. Compartmentalize your	
2. Compartmentalize your	
3. Compartmentalize your	

But Go	od wants
	"If anyone would come after me, let him deny himself and take up his cross and follow me" (Mark 8:34).
	"Any one of you who does not renounce all that he has cannot be my disciple" (Luke 14:33).
	"I have been crucified with Christ. It is no longer I who live, but Christ who lives in me" (Galatians 2:20).
Consequenc	ces of Compartmentalization
1. Har	m
2. Lose	e
	"If you abide in my word, you are truly my disciples" (John 8:31).
	"But the one who endures to the end will be saved" (Matthew 24:13).
	You and I have been reconciled, "if indeed you continue in the faith, stable and steadfast, not shifting from the hope of the gospel that you heard" (Colossians 1:23).
	"For we share in Christ, if indeed we hold our original confidence firm to the end" (Hebrews 3:14).

10. Walking With God

3. Warning passages

"If you abide in my word, you are truly my disciples" (John 8:31).

"And by this we know that we have come to know him, if we keep his commandments. Whoever says "I know him" but does not keep his commandments is a liar, and the truth is not in him, but whoever keeps his word, in him truly the love of God is perfected. By this we may be sure that we are in him: whoever says he abides in him ought to walk in the same way in which he walked" (1 John 2:3-6).

"I know your works: you are neither cold nor hot. Would that you were either cold or hot! So, because you are lukewarm, and neither hot nor cold, I will spit you out of my mouth. Those whom I love, I reprove and discipline, so be zealous and repent" (Revelation 3:15-16,19).

Jesus is "Savior" and "Lord"

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. In your own words, describe what it means to "walk" with God, what it means to be "sanctified."
- 2. How would you write Romans 12:1-2 in your own words, bringing out the full meaning of the passage?
- 3. God never promised that if you became a Christian all your problems would go away. Were you promised this by someone? If so, you need to find a mature Christian and talk through this issue.
- 4. Have any bad things happened to you since becoming a Christian? What were they? How did they make you feel? How did you respond?
- 5. Has anything happened to you that has proved and refined your faith?
- 6. Has anything happened to you that helped you "grow up" in Christ, that helped to produce Christian character in you?
- 7. Have you been tempted to compartmentalize God yet? Have you been tempted to keep back certain areas of your life, keeping doors to certain rooms in your heart closed? Giving all of yourself is often a challenging process, so don't be disappointed if you are compartmentalizing, but be aware. What can you do to open the doors of your heart that you perhaps have already closed? What can you do to not let this become a habit?
- 8. Does the image of a patchwork quilt help? Are there any other images that might help to drive the point home?
- 9. How are you doing with confession? Is it coming easier? When you know that something has come between God and you, what is helping (or hurting) you to confess and be honest with God?
- 10. If you are a new Christian, the discussion of assurance and the warning passages may have been a little frightening. Share with your friend how you felt about this. Remember that it is God who gives you the desires and the ability to grow in holiness; nevertheless, you still need to take that next step. What would encourage you in your spiritual walk?

10. Walking With God

DAY FIVE Write out and memorize Romans 12:1-2. Suggested prayer topics

DAY SIX

The Bible has many images to help us understand that we are to be different from the world. One of my favorites is "salt" and "light." Here is the passage.

"You are the salt of the earth. But what good is salt if it has lost its flavor? Can you make it useful again? It will be thrown out and trampled underfoot as worthless. You are the light of the world—like a city on a mountain, glowing in the night for all to see. Don't hide your light under a basket! Instead, put it on a stand and let it shine for all. In the same way, let your good deeds shine out for all to see, so that everyone will praise your heavenly Father" (Matthew 5:13-16).

The second image is a little simpler. Jesus is the true light of the world, and through us he lumines others. In what practical ways can your new faith in Jesus Christ illumine the lives of hose around you?
Suggested prayer topics

10. Walking With God

11

Walking Together

While we become God's children one disciple at a time, as children we are members of a new family with a new father, new brothers and sisters, and a new home. How do I relate to these people? Do I need to spend time with them? Is this an easy or difficult task? How does the early church help us understand these issues? How does my love for God show itself to others?

JOHN 17:20-26; ACTS 2:42-47

John 17 contains Jesus' prayer to God for the church.

"I do not ask for these only [i.e., his disciples], but also for those who will believe in me through their word, that they may all be one, just as you, Father, are in me, and I in you, that they also may be in us, so that the world may believe that you have sent me. The glory that you have given me I have given to them, that they may be one even as we are one, I in them and you in me, that they may become perfectly one, so that the world may know that you sent me and loved them even as you loved me. Father, I desire that they also, whom you have given me, may be with me where I am, to see my glory that you have given me because you loved me before the foundation of the world. O righteous Father, even though the world does not know you, I know you, and these know that you have sent me. I made known to them your name, and I will continue to make it known, that the love with which you have loved me may be in them, and I in them."

Acts 2 gives a powerful picture of the early church.

And they devoted themselves to the apostles' teaching and fellowship, to the breaking of bread and the prayers. And awe came upon every soul, and many wonders and signs were being done through the apostles. And all who believed were together and had all things in common. And they were selling their possessions and belongings and distributing the proceeds to all, as any had need. And day by day, attending the temple together and breaking bread in their homes, they received their food with glad and generous hearts, praising God and having favor with all the people. And the Lord added to their number day by day those who were being saved."

11. Walking Together 119

DAY ONE

Even before you became a Christian, you most likely lived in some kind of community – family, friends, co-workers, neighbors, friends at school, etc. God did not create us to live in isolation but to live within "circles of relationships." What are some of the things that you treasure the most about your relationships?
Suggested prayer topics

DAY TWO

The longer you are a Christian, the more relationships you should be building within the church, your new spiritual family. While there certainly will be some conflicts – after all, we are all still human – there will also be great joys. What are some of the things you are looking forward to in terms of spiritual relationships that you might not have experienced with your non-Christian friends?
Suggested prayer topics

11. Walking Together 121

DAY THREE

Read the description of the early church in Acts 2:42-47 (page 131 above) and list as many characteristics you can see of what healthy, biblical community looks like.
Suggested prayer topics

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

When we became Christians, we became part of a new	
·	
" that they may all be one, just as you, Father, are in me, and I in you, that they also may be in us, so that the world may believe that you have sent me I in them and you in me, that they may become perfectly one, so that the world may know that you sent me and loved them even as you loved me" (John 17:21, 23).	
Great challenges in creating community	
Randy Frazee, The Connecting Church (Zondervan)	
Problem: we were created for	
Model of the Early Church (Acts 2:42-47)	
All about	
1. Growth into	

"Him [i.e., Jesus] we proclaim, warning everyone and teaching everyone with all wisdom, that we may present everyone mature in Christ. For this I toil, struggling with all his energy that he powerfully works within me" (Colossians 1:28-29; cf. Ephesians 4:11-15).

11. Walking Together

2. Growth into
"Christian crock pot"
"Be kind to one another, tenderhearted, forgiving one another, as God in Chris forgave you" (Ephesians 4:32).
"Haven of Grace"
3. Growth into
Service the body
"And let us consider how to stir up one another to love and good works, not neglecting to meet together, as is the habit of some, but encouraging one another, and all the more as you see the Day drawing near" (Hebrews 10:24-25).
"By this we know love, that he laid down his life for us, and we ought to lay down our lives for the brothers. But if anyone has the world's goods and sees his brother in need, yet closes his heart against him, how does God's love abide in him? Little children, let us not love in word or talk be in deed and in truth" (1 John 3:16-18).
Service the body

Hard work

Begins with a	
May Lencourage you to	
May rencourage you to	
Then we will be a	

11. Walking Together 125

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. You will most likely bring much of your natural family into the family of God. It is inevitable. What is there from your past that should come, and what is there that should not come?
- 2. What was there about the church that enticed you to come to Christ as a new disciple? What was there that fought against your conversion?
- 3. What are the greatest secular forces working against you in your commitment to the family of God.
- 4. As Acts describes the early church, what stands out to you? What is the most desirable for you in your situation? Do you struggle with any of it?
- 5. I think we would all instinctively acknowledge that God demands the place of centrality in our life. Is he central in your life? What is competing with him?
- 6. Are you growing in Christ? Are you moving toward individual and corporate discipleship? How can we help?
- 7. Are you "devoted" to fellowship within the body. What forces fight against us making the church our central circle of relationships? How can we balance our commitment to our natural family with that of God's family?
- 8. List some specific examples of how in the past month you have stirred up a brother in Christ to love and good works (Hebrews 10:24). If not, how can we encourage you to do so? Did you know that you were supposed to do this?
- 9. Are you involved in any cross-cultural missions outreach? This does not include giving money for someone else to do so, as important as that is.
- 10. This is hard work, isn't it? How can you be encouraged, and how can you encourage others, to dig in and do the hard work? How can you allow God to use his energy to powerfully work within you to do this task?
- 11. Are you willing to simplify your life? Do you believe you need to in order to relieve your loneliness and give you a true sense of belonging?
- 12. What do you think this community would look like if it were truly a "haven of grace"?

DAY FIVE
Write out and memorize Hebrews 10:24-25.
Suggested prayer topics

11. Walking Together 127

DAY SIX

None of this relational "stuff" comes automatically or naturally. It is hard work. It will probably involve you stepping out, extending yourself, and taking relational risks. Some people may not be interested in community and they will lose the privilege and joy of knowing you better and better. But don't let that stop you. We are called to be radical and counter-cultural, just like Jesus. What do you believe will be the greatest roadblocks to you functioning as part of an authentic, biblical community?
What are you willing to do to overcome the obstacles and reach out, while at the same time receiving those who reach out to you?
Suggested prayer topics

12

Inviting Others To Walk With You

Disciples are to make more disciples. This is one of the most joyous experiences of your life as you share how God made you alive, and he will do the same for your friends, neighbors, and others. This isn't a frightening process; it is in fact natural for people who have been changed and are living changed lives. How will people respond to you? What is a "personal testimony"? How do I tell people they too can be a disciple of Jesus? What if they don't like me?

WALKING WITH JESUS, AND INVITING OTHERS TO WALK WITH YOU

The following passages summarize this walk. Changed people live in a changed way, people will notice your actions more than your words, they will respond in one of two ways, and you should be prepared to explain why you are different.

Matthew 5:13-16 "You are the salt of the earth, but if salt has lost its taste, how shall its saltiness be restored? It is no longer good for anything except to be thrown out and trampled under people's feet. You are the light of the world. A city set on a hill cannot be hidden. Nor do people light a lamp and put it under a basket, but on a stand, and it gives light to all in the house. In the same way, let your light shine before others, so that they may see your good works and give glory to your Father who is in heaven."

1 Peter 3:1-4 "Likewise, wives, be subject to your own husbands, so that even if some do not obey the word, they may be won without a word by the conduct of their wives—when they see your respectful and pure conduct. Do not let your adorning be external—the braiding of hair, the wearing of gold, or the putting on of clothing—but let your adorning be the hidden person of the heart with the imperishable beauty of a gentle and quiet spirit, which in God's sight is very precious."

2 Corinthians 2:14-16 "But thanks be to God, who in Christ always leads us in triumphal procession, and through us spreads the fragrance of the knowledge of him everywhere. For we are the aroma of Christ to God among those who are being saved and among those who are perishing, to one a fragrance from death to death, to the other a fragrance from life to life."

1 Peter 3:15-16 "Always be prepared to make a defense to anyone who asks you for a reason for the hope that is in you; yet do it with gentleness and respect, having a good conscience."

DAY ONE

When you became a Christian, you were changed from the inside out. God made you new, made you alive, gave you a new birth. Then he called you to live a changed life, which means that you are going to be different from people who do not follow Jesus.
As you live out your life, what have you stopped doing that might attract people's attention. How are you visibly different? (By the way, this should be an encouragement to you. Sometimes changes are gradual and we don't see them.)
The reverse is also true. You will have started doing things that you didn't do before, and this too will attract the attention of your non-believing friends. List some of them.
Suggested prayer topics

130 Life is a Journey

Thank God for these changes. Ask him to encourage you to continue living a changed life.

DAY TWO

Paul tells the Corinthians that we all have a fragrance to our lives. Some people think that we stink; in other words, they see the changes in your life and they don't like it. Has this happened to you yet? Explain.
Other people will think that we have a sweet fragrance that is inviting to them; they will see the changes in your life and want to get closer, to know why? Has this happened yet?
Suggested prayer topics

Ask God for strength when people don't understand or like the changes in your life; ask him to show you the positive ways in which people are responding to your new life.

DAY THREE

As your life continues to change and people see the "new you," some will want to know
why you are different. You need to be ready to tell them what has happened and why. Think
through the answers to the following questions. What you are writing is called your "personal
testimony."

details (if there are any).	
2. Why did you decide to become a disciple of Jesus? What were the events surrounding th experience?	at
3. How have you changed since then?	

Suggested prayer topics

For clarity of expression as you try to explain your new faith, and for the opportunity to share these changes with a close friend who is not a believer.

DAY FOUR: NOTES ON THE TALK

Jesus calls people to "follow me"
"Follow me, and I will make you fishers of men" (Matthew 4:19).
People who follow Jesus are to invite others to join with them
"And Jesus came and said to them, 'All authority in heaven and on earth has been give to me. Go therefore and make disciples of all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit, teaching them to observe all that I hav commanded you. And behold, I am with you always, to the end of the age'" (Matthew 28:18-20).
"In Christ God was reconciling the world to himself, not counting their trespasses against them, and entrusting to us the message of reconciliation. Therefore, we are ambassadors for Christ, God making his appeal through us. We implore you on behalf of Christ, be reconciled to God. For our sake he made him to be sin who knew no sin, so that in him we might become the righteousness of God" (2 Corinthians 5:19-21).
1. In conversion, God

2. As you live out a changed life, people will	
innocei	things without grumbling or questioning, that you may be blameless and nt, children of God without blemish in the midst of a crooked and twisted tion, among whom you shine as lights in the world" (Philippians 2:14-15).
Christia	ans are to be
	"You are the light of the world. A city set on a hill cannot be hidden. Nor do people light a lamp and put it under a basket, but on a stand, and it gives light to all in the house. In the same way, let your light shine before others, so that they may see your good works and give glory to your Father who is in heaven" (Matthew 5:14-16).
Christia	ans are also
	"You are the salt of the earth, but if salt has lost its taste, how shall its saltiness be restored? It is no longer good for anything except to be thrown out and trampled under people's feet" (Matthew 5:13).
	Christ "gave himself for us, that he might redeem us from all iniquity, and purify unto himself a peculiar people, zealous of good works" (Titus 2:14 in the King James).
	"He gave his life to free us from every kind of sin, to cleanse us, and to make us his very own people, totally committed to doing what is right" (New Living

134 Life is a Journey

Translation).

3. People will notice and wonder why you have changed

"Pread	ch at all times; if necessary, use′
	"Wives, be submissive to your own husbands, so that even if some do not obey the word, they may be won without a word by the conduct of their wives—when they see your respectful and pure conduct. Do not let your adorning be external—the braiding of hair, the wearing of gold, or the putting on of clothing-but let your adorning be the hidden person of the heart with the imperishable beauty of a gentle and quiet spirit, which in God's sight is very precious" (1 Pete 4:1-4).
Two w	vays they will respond
	"But thanks be to God, who in Christ always leads us in triumphal procession, and through us spreads the fragrance of the knowledge of him everywhere. For we are the aroma of Christ to God among those who are being saved and among those who are perishing, to one a fragrance from death to death, to the other a fragrance from life to life" (2 Corinthians 2:14-16).
1. Aro	ma of
2. Ste	nch of
	"The time that is past suffices for doing what the Gentiles want to do, living in sensuality, passions, drunkenness, orgies, drinking parties, and lawless idolatry. With respect to this they are surprised when you do not join them in the same flood of debauchery, and they malign you; but they will give account to him

who is ready to judge the living and the dead" (1 Peter 4:3-5).

4. It you smell	like the aroma of life, they will
·	
speech	ct yourselves wisely toward outsiders, making the best use of the time. Let your always be gracious, seasoned with salt, so that you may know how you ought to each person" (Colossians 4:5-6).
	be "prepared to make a defense to anyone who asks you for a reason for the at is in you; yet do it with gentleness and respect, having a good conscience" (15-16).
Personal testi	mony (John 9:24-25; Acts 4:20)
1. KISS:	
ē	o
ł	D
(C

2. Invi	te them to
	ABC
	John 3:16
	Romans 3:23; 6:23; 10:9
3. Kee	p the focus on
4. Dor	n't take too much
Christians ar	re

REFLECTION QUESTIONS

- 1. How does it make you feel to know that just as Jesus invited you to walk with him, you also are to ask others along for the same walk? Frightened? Expectant? Joyous? What do you think is prompting this response?
- 2. Have you ever had any experience being an "ambassador" of any type, secular or religious? What are your memories of that time?
- 3. As you live out your changed life, what have you stopped doing and what have you started doing that might attract a friend's attention? Are you doing any "preaching" with your life?
- 4. Has anyone reacted negatively to you about the changes in your life? Have they said you are critical or judgmental or that you think you are better than anyone else?
- 5. Has anyone reacted positively about the changes in your life? Have they said that you are nicer or kinder or gentler?
- 6. Have you ever heard someone give their "personal testimony"? What were your reactions to it?
- 7. Share the three parts of your testimony with your friend, but keep it under five minutes. Then try it again under three minutes. Hard, isn't it?
- 8. How do you want to share the plan of salvation? Does one of the three I listed sound appropriate for you? Perhaps your friend has another idea. You probably should memorize the three passages from Romans regardless of which method you want to use.
- 9. Is there some illustration that you are comfortable using, perhaps the chasm or some other?
- 10. If you are talking to someone who does not want to become a Christ, what will you do? How can you keep from becoming discouraged or feeling rejected?
- 11. Ask your friend if they have a story they can share about sharing their faith with someone.

DAY FIVE

Go back to Day Three and review your personal testimony. Now that we have gone over the talk and you have had more time to think about it, write out your testimony and practice it with your friend.
1. Life before becoming a Christian.
2. Why and how you became a believer.
3. The impact that decision has made on your life.
Suggested prayer topics

That God would prompt someone to ask you about why your life is different, and that you

would respond naturally in joy and not with fear.

DAY SIX

Write o	out and memorize Romans 3:23, 6:23, and 10:9.
	"All have sinned and fall short of the glory of God" (Romans 3:23)
	"The wages of sin is death, but the free gift of God is eternal life in Christ Jesus our Lord" (Romans 6:23).
	"If you confess with your mouth that Jesus is Lord and believe in your heart that God raised him from the dead, you will be saved" (Romans 10:9).

Suggested prayer topics

That God would give you the opportunity not only to share the plan of salvation with a friend who asks, but to bring to your mind another friend who perhaps needs to be challenged with the plan of salvation.

What's Next

Congratulations. You've taken the first steps of your Christian walk in the right direction. You will spend the rest of your life building on this foundation. What's next for you?

By now you should have become involved in a good church and have started to develop the spiritual disciplines of regular prayer, Bible reading, meditation, and application. Have you enjoyed journaling? These are the disciplines that you will continue to develop throughout your life.

Now that you have a grasp on the overall picture, you can start to center in on some specifics. Choose something you enjoy. Do you want to know more about Jesus? Read the gospel of Mark. Do you want to know more about how we all got here? Read Genesis. Do you want to learn more about worship? Read the Psalms.

But whatever you do, please continue in the same direction you have started. It's not just how you start, but how you finish the race that matters. May God richly bless you along the way

12. What's Next